Public Document Pack

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date:

Wednesday, 3 July 2019

Time:

2.00 pm

Place:

Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham,
NG2 3NG

Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following
business

Corporate Director for Strategy and Resources
Governance Officer: Zena West Direct Dial: 0115 8764305

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

3

MINUTES
To confirm minutes of the meeting held 5 June 2019.

4

CITIZEN SATISFACTION SURVEY / CUSTOMER SERVICES
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance

5

COLLEAGUE SATISFACTION SURVEY
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance

17 - 24

6

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY STATUTORY GUIDANCE
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance

25 - 26

7

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance

27 - 30

3-8

9 - 16

IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ON THE
AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE, IF
POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING

CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES
CITIZENS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS MEETING MAY BE RECORDED BY MEMBERS
OF THE PUBLIC. ANY RECORDING OR REPORTING ON THIS MEETING SHOULD
TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL’S POLICY ON RECORDING AND
REPORTING ON PUBLIC MEETINGS, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT
WWW.NOTTINGHAMCITY.GOV.UK. INDIVIDUALS INTENDING TO RECORD THE
MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE IN
ADVANCE.

Agenda Item 3
NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting held at Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley
House, Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG on 5 June 2019 from 2.02 pm 3.40 pm
Membership
Present
Councillor Anne Peach (Chair)
Councillor Georgia Power (Vice Chair)
Councillor Azad Choudhry
Councillor Pavlos Kotsonis
Councillor Jane Lakey
Councillor Ethan Radford
Councillor Andrew Rule

Absent
Councillor Carole McCulloch (Vice
Chair)
Councillor Maria Joannou
Councillor Sue Johnson
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan
Councillor Cate Woodward

Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:
Councillor David Mellen
Philip Broxholme
Alex Castle-Clarke
Wilf Fearon
Superintendent Mat Healey
James Lavender
Superintendent Matt McFarlane
Sophie Russell
Zena West
1

- Leader of the Council
- Senior Performance and Insight Analyst,
Community Protection
- Tasking & Intelligence Manager, Community
Protection
- Service Manager, Youth Offending
- City Area Commander, Nottinghamshire Police
- Governance Officer
- Knife Crime Lead, Nottinghamshire Police
- Head of Children's Strategy and Improvement
- Senior Governance Officer

APOLOGIES

Councillor Cate Woodward
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan
2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None
3

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 6 March 2019 were agreed as a correct record
and signed by the Chair.
4

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

RESOLVED to note the contents of the updated Terms of Reference for the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Page 3

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5.06.19

5

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY CALL-IN PANEL

RESOLVED to establish the Overview and Scrutiny Call-in panel, note its Terms
of Reference, and note its membership.
6

KNIFE CRIME

Councillor David Mellen, Leader of the Council, delivered a presentation on the
actions that Nottingham City Council (NCC) and Nottinghamshire Police have been
taking in order to tackle knife crime within the city, highlighting the following:
(a) Partnerships involving councils, the police and other stakeholders are key to
tackling knife crime;
(b) The city has previously had a reputation for violent crime. Through successful
strategies and policies, the number of violent crimes in Nottingham halved
around 4 or 5 years ago, but it has been increasing again recently;
(c) Incidents of knife crime have increased in the past three and a half years, but
the increase has slowed down recently;
(d) Around half of victims and offenders involved in knife crimes in Nottingham
City (not including those associated with domestic violence) are aged 25 and
over, and a further quarter were aged 18 or over, which challenges the media
assumptions that knife crime is a youth-related problem;
(e) 45% of knife crimes reported were personal robberies;
(f) There are a number of strategic links with the police, schools, disability
services, safeguarding, families, education and training providers, voluntary
and community groups, the Courts and the City Economy which feed into the
Serious Youth Violence and Exploitation Programme;
(g) Criminal exploitation interlinks with a number of multiple vulnerabilities and
offences including the child being exposed to and/or victim of physical and
emotional violence, neglect, sexual abuse and exploitation, modern day
slavery and human trafficking, domestic abuse and missing episodes;
(h) ‘County Lines’ is a term used by government departments, law enforcement,
local authorities and partner agencies to describe the use of mobile phone
‘lines’ by gangs looking to extend their drug dealing activities into locations
outside of their metropolitan home areas;
(i) Case studies from Chicago and Glasgow have helped inform the Serious
Youth Violence and Exploitation Programme’s work;
(j) The proposed approach breaks down into two areas:
a. Phase One – Development of a responsive, deployable and flexible
resource through a multi-agency hub;

Page 4

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5.06.19

b. Phase Two – a systemic ‘public health’ approach to tackling the
causative factors;
(k) The Programme links together with Police Crime Commissioner’s Knife Crime
Action Plan and aims to coordinate activities;
(l) The Programme and its proposed governance was presented to, and agreed
by the Nottingham Crime & Drug Partnership (CDP) Board in March 2019;
(m) Over £490,000 in Troubled Families ‘Supporting Families affected by Youth
Crime’ funding has been secured to work with schools and the voluntary
sector;
(n) A Play & Youth review and restructure is underway, which was presented to
Executive Panel on 18 March 2019;
(o) The Multi-agency Child Criminal Exploitation Panel was established in October
2018 and is currently tracking the ‘at risk’ cohort;
(p) The Exploitation and Violence Reduction Hub (EVR Hub) was established in
October 2018 to increase multi-agency support and capacity;
(q) PCSOs in the EVR Hub are delivering the Street Aware programme in primary
schools. 74% of all primary schools have either scheduled or completed the
programme;
(r) The YouCan programme is being funded and coordinated through Economic
Development, with colleagues being trained to deliver to the target cohort;
(s) Nottinghamshire Police use a Risk Matrix to identify areas where offences
could or have taken place. They then work with community groups, children’s
charities and housing associations to change the behaviours of potential
offenders. This includes sending doctors into schools and youth centres to talk
about the effects of knife crime, trips to the National Justice Museum, and a
Violence Prevention Project which helps identify vulnerable individuals and
provides them with the means to empower themselves to change their future;
(t) Nottingham Trent University have undertaken some research into the victims
of knife crime in Nottingham;
(u) The tactical efforts of Nottinghamshire Police in tackling knife crime include the
Knife Crime Team working out of St Ann’s. Stop and Search has been 60%
accurate in seizing knives and other weapons. Police raids have found stores
of drugs and weapons. Operation Guardian involved going into public areas
and searching people for drugs.
The Committee considered the following points in discussions about the report:
(a) The Street Aware and Life Skills sessions have worked well in schools and
have helped provide opportunities for vulnerable children and young people to
move away from violent crime;

Page 5

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5.06.19

(b) Race and hate crime can’t be ruled out as a factor in knife crime;
(c) Cuts to youth services have meant that fewer staff are available, but NCC still
provides this service, contracted to 12 wards within the city. Ideally, this
service would still be provided across all wards of the city;
(d) Cuts to the police have meant that there are fewer Police Officers and PCSOs.
The Home Office has allocated money to tackle knife crime, but this money
comes with tight conditions. The money needs to be spend on measures to
tackle crime in the long-term, rather than recruit new Police Officers in the
short-term;
(e) Social media is a factor in knife crime in that comments made on social media
websites and apps can escalate, however these apps are private or encrypted
so it can be hard to track users. Social media can also hinder the work of the
police and youth services because it can be used to track staff movements,
particularly if they are visiting vulnerable people or offenders;
(f) Referrals from schools, youth groups and social workers are the first step in
identifying individuals. Various organisations can then work with them to
change their behaviours;
(g) There are three types of people who are usually involved with knife crime;
(1) People carrying knives which they believe can be used in selfdefence;
(2) People carrying knives for show as a status symbol;
(3) Organised gang members who intend to use them as an offensive
weapon;
(h) Early intervention and rehabilitation is key. If a child or young adult is charged
for carrying a knife, conditional bail is used to contact Children’s Services and
begin the process of rehabilitation;
(i) Neighbourhood and Outreach projects also help in identifying vulnerable
people;
(j) The knife crime preventions programmes require all citizens to play their part.
For example, some young people might not talk to the police or the council,
but they might talk to other groups such as youth groups, charities or boxing
clubs, who can then work with the police or the council to help the young
person avoid becoming involved in knife crime;
(k) It can take several weeks for the police to obtain a search warrant for a house
if they believe drug dealing and abuse is taking place in that property,
depending what evidence is available;
(l) The use of body cameras by Police Officers has begun to show that most Stop
and Search actions do take place fairly. Much of the negative publicity around
Stop and Search has been due to the media’s coverage of the London

Page 6

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5.06.19

Metropolitan Police service. Nottinghamshire Police conduct Stop and Search
differently to the London Metropolitan Police, and hope to avoid many of the
publicised issues associated with Stop and Search.
RESOLVED to:
(1) Receive a written update on the victim research from Nottingham Trent
University when available;
(2) Note the positive work of partner organisations so far, and the strong
focus on the importance of working in partnership;
(3) Receive a written update from Nottinghamshire Police with statistics on
the breakdown of knife crime incidents by ward, racially motivated
attacks and Stop and Search use and effectiveness.
7

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 19/20

Zena West, Senior Governance Officer, updated the Committee on the Work
Programme, as circulated with the agenda. Councillors suggested a written update to
the October 2019 Committee from Nottingham Credit Union, following their
presentation to the Committee in January 2019, and that Flooding be added to the list
of items to be scheduled.
RESOLVED to note the Work Programme.
8

FUTURE MEETING DATES

RESOLVED to meet on the following dates at 2.00pm (with a required premeeting for Committee members from 1.30pm):
3 July 2019
4 September 2019
9 October 2019
6 November 2019
4 December 2019
8 January 2020
5 February 2020
4 March 2020
8 April 2020

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
3 JULY 2019
CITIZEN SATISFACTION SURVEY / CUSTOMER SERVICE
REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE
1

Purpose

1.1 To review the results of the latest Citizen Survey for Nottingham City
Council colleagues.
2

Action required

2.1 Councillors are asked to review the information provided, ask questions
of colleague attending if appropriate, and make recommendations for
further scrutiny as necessary.
3

Background information

3.1 The latest Nottingham Citizen Survey was conducted in October and
November 2018.
3.2 Shelley Harrod (Research, Engagement and Consultation Manager) and
Councillor Sally Longford (Portfolio Holder for Energy, Environment and
Democratic Services (with a remit covering Customer Services) will be
attending the meeting to update the Councillors on results, trends and
further actions arising from the latest survey.
4

List of attached information

4.1 Briefing on the results of the latest Citizen Survey.
5

Background papers, other than published works or those
disclosing exempt or confidential information

5.1 None.
6

Published documents referred to in compiling this report

6.1 None.
7

Wards affected

7.1 All.
8

Contact information

8.1 Zena West, Senior Governance Officer
zena.west@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
0115 876 4305
Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Citizens Survey 2018

Page 11

Nottingham City Council

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

The stable and positive results are:






1.2

Respondents continue to be satisfied with their local area as a place to live
with 83% who said they are satisfied.
Cohesion continues to remain high with 90% of respondents who feel their
local area is a place where people from different backgrounds get on well
together.
93% of respondents agree that staff who deal with their enquires are polite.
When asked if they feel the Council treats them fairly, 82% said they agree
and this has seen no change from 2017.
There has been no significant change in respondents who would speak
highly of Nottingham, this is 75% in 2018 (76% in 2017).

The areas of deterioration are:




Satisfaction with local area cleanliness (65%) and city centre cleanliness
(70%) have been seen a 5% decrease from 2017.
Overall satisfaction is at 65% down from 72% in 2017.
Satisfaction with customer services has continued to see a downward trend.
Of those who have contacted the council in the last 12 months, 64% of
respondents are satisfied with how their enquiry was dealt with (73% in 2017
and 67% in 2017). 65% of respondents agree their enquiry was dealt with in
a reasonable amount of time (71% in 2017).

2.0

BACKGROUND AND METHODOLOGY

2.1

The Citizens’ Survey has been conducted annually since 2006, largely using a
face-to-face interview technique1. Since 2011, the fieldwork has been conducted
using a multi-stage sampling scheme designed to provide a robust and
representative sample of the city. It includes a stratification by the Index of
Multiple Deprivation (IMD) and takes a sample from all the 176 Lower Level
Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in the city. Quota controls ensure that the
achieved sample of citizens is representative in terms of age and gender at area
level and in terms of ethnicity and working status at city level. The survey
explores citizens’ opinions on quality of life, the Council and subjects of topical
interest as well as exploring self-reported health.

2.2

Information by Design Ltd was commissioned by the City Council to conduct the
2018 Nottingham Citizens’ Survey.

2.3

The fieldwork was undertaken in October and November 2018 and involved
face-to-face interviews with 2004 citizens (approximately 100 per ward,
depending on relative population size). This is the same methodology as used in
the last ten years, so the results are directly comparable.

1

In 2006 and 2008, postal surveys were also undertaken in addition to the face-to-face surveys

Page 12

Consultation: Citizens’ Survey, Version: 3
Author: Shelley Harrod June 2019
Page 2 of 5

Nottingham City Council

2.4

Up until 2018, the Citizens Survey results have remained reasonably consistent
over the last 5 years, however the 2018 results have seen some statistically
significant changes. They do, however, continue to show higher levels of
satisfaction than the national picture.

3.0

KEY FINDINGS

3.1

Overall, results from the 2018 have seen some deterioration from 2017, however
they continue to show high levels of satisfaction or positive outcomes compared
nationally.

3.2

Perceptions about local area
Local area satisfaction continues to remain high, however the perception of
cleanliness in the city centre and local area reduced.





3.3

83% of respondents are satisfied with their local area as a place to live (85%
2017*)
65% are satisfied with the cleanliness of their local area (70% in 2017^)
90% feel their local area is a place where people from different backgrounds
get on well together (91% 2017*)
43% feel they can influence decisions affecting their local area (47% in
2017^)

Perceptions of the Council
Deterioration on measures.





3.4

Contact with the Council




2
2

65% are satisfied with the way the Council runs things (72% in 2017^)
56% feel the Council provides value for money (63% in 2017^)
70% are satisfied with city centre cleanliness (75% in 2017^)2
82% agree that the Council treats them fairly (no change)

73% feel well informed about Council services and benefits (75% in 2017*)
88% of respondents find Council information easy to understand (no change)
47% of respondents have contacted the Council in the last 12 months, of
which:
o 64% are satisfied with how their enquiry was handled (67% in 2017^)
o 93% agree the person handling their enquiry was polite (no change)
o 71% agree that those handling their enquiry delivered what they
promised (73% in 2017*)
o 65% agree that their enquiry was dealt with in a reasonable amount of
time (71% in 2017^)

*Not statistically significant difference at 95% confidence level
^Statistically significant difference to 2017 results at the 95% confidence level

Page 13

Consultation: Citizens’ Survey, Version: 3
Author: Shelley Harrod June 2019
Page 3 of 5

Nottingham City Council

3.5

Perceptions about Nottingham
There are no significant changes in perceptions about Nottingham.



3.6

75% said they would speak highly of Nottingham (76% in 2017*)3
Respondents remain positive about Nottingham as a place to:
o Live: 92% (93% in 2017*)
o Study: 97% (no change)
o Visit: 90% (no change)
o Work: 88% (91% in 2017^)
(% saying they would recommend Nottingham a great deal or to some extent)

Experiences due to current economic climate




22% of respondents said they are struggling or constantly not keeping up
with bills (24% in 2017*)
38% said they did not know or were unsure of where to go for advice, help or
support when they encounter financial difficulties (32% in 2017^)
32% of people have noticed a deterioration in Council services as a result of
the cuts to budgets (30% in 2017*)

As was the case last year, results suggest that those who are unemployed or
otherwise not in paid work and those with a disability or long-term illness seem to
be having the most difficulty keeping up with bills and credit commitments.
3.7

Health and wellbeing (self-reported)







3.8

23% of respondents smoke (no change) a downward trend remains overall
12% are at an increasing or higher risk of developing alcohol-related health
problems (12% in 2017*)
Average mental wellbeing score of 52.1, which is slightly lower than 2017
(52.6*)
The proportion with a below average mental wellbeing (14%) has seen no
significant change over the last year (previously 12%*) those with an average
mental wellbeing has decreased from 67% in 2017 to 64% in 2018.
23% of respondents use public transport to get to work (a slight decrease
from 25% last year*) and there has been an increase in those who walk or
cycle at 22% (previously 19%)
44% of respondents visit a park or open space at least once a week (45% in
2017*)

LGA Residents Satisfaction Survey

*Not statistically significant difference at 95% confidence level 3
^Statistically significant difference at the 95% confidence level.

Page 14

Consultation: Citizens’ Survey, Version: 3
Author: Shelley Harrod June 2019
Page 4 of 5

Nottingham City Council

The Local Government Association’s Residents’ Satisfaction Survey 2018
reported 6 percentage point falls over the same period for overall council
satisfaction and value for money fell by 3%. It is also worth noting that for both
value for money and satisfaction with the council, Nottingham saw a
considerably higher percentage of positive responses than the national average.

Not all areas carry out satisfaction and perception surveys and those that do
often use different questions and methodologies making direct comparison
difficult. The Local Government Association, however, conduct a national survey
of resident satisfaction with local councils – many of the questions are the same
as those asked in Nottingham4. Across many of the indicators Nottingham
performs better than the national average for all councils, particularly in regards
to ‘satisfaction with local area as a place to live’ and ‘value for money’. The
following provides a summary of the comparisons:
Indicator

Nottingham
Score (Dec
2018)

LGA
national
score (Feb
2018)

Satisfaction with local area as a place to live

83%

78%

Satisfaction with cleanliness of local area

65%

65%

Satisfaction with the way the council runs things

65%

60%

56%

44%

73%

58%

Agreement that the Council provides value for
money
Feeling informed about Council services and
benefits

Page 15

Consultation: Citizens’ Survey, Version: 3
Author: Shelley Harrod June 2019
Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
3 JULY 2019
COLLEAGUE SATISFACTION SURVEY
REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE
1

Purpose

1.1 To review the results of the latest Colleague Satisfaction Survey for
Nottingham City Council colleagues.
2

Action required

2.1 Councillors are asked to review the information provided, ask questions
of colleague attending if appropriate, and make recommendations for
further scrutiny as necessary.
3

Background information

3.1 The latest Colleague Opinion Survey ran from 1 October until 16
November 2018.
3.2 The Colleague Opinion Survey is the main way the Council can gauge
feelings from colleagues on a mass basis and hear what they think.
Information from these surveys is sent to relevant Directors, Heads of
Service and, in teams larger than ten people, to managers. Relevant
seniors colleagues are asked to take actions based on responses on an
appropriate basis.
3.3 Sue Barsby (Internal Communications and Engagement Consultant),
Lucy Lee (Head of Customer Services) and Gareth Sayers
(Development and Change Manager) will be attending the meeting to
update the Councillors on results, trends and further actions arising from
the latest survey.
4

List of attached information

4.1 Briefing on the results of the latest Colleague Satisfaction Survey.
5

Background papers, other than published works or those
disclosing exempt or confidential information

5.1 None.
6

Published documents referred to in compiling this report

6.1 None.

Page 17

7

Wards affected

7.1 None.
8

Contact information

8.1 Zena West, Senior Governance Officer
zena.west@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
0115 876 4305

Page 18

Colleague Opinion Survey 2018

Page 19

Nottingham City Council

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

There has been a fall in response rates from previous years, 49% in 2015, 43%
in 2017 to 38% in 2019, despite additional promotion, encouragement and
alternative methods being made available.

1.2

Response rates had fallen across all departments, suggesting an organisational
issue, rather than a departmental specific one.

1.3

The primarily reason given for not responding was a view that little was done
with the feedback provided in 2017.

1.4

The headline stable and positive results are:







1.5

Job Satisfaction up 4%.
Job Security up 6%.
Satisfaction with basic pay up 5%
Satisfaction with current workload up 6%
Perception of collaboration between teams up 1%
Belief that NCC values a diverse workforce stable at 80%.

The headline areas of deterioration all relating to line management are:






Holds regular team meetings drop of 4%
Holds regular supervision drop of 3%
Gives me feedback on how I’m doing down 4%
Encourages the team to be ambitious down 4%
Manages change competently down 7%

2.0

BACKGROUND AND METHODOLOGY

2.1

The Colleague Opinion Survey has been run internally since 2015, using SNAP
survey software. It has been conducted in 2015, 2017 and 2018, with the next
one scheduled to take place in March 2020. It is open to all colleagues,
encouraging them to take the survey using laptops, mobile devices, or paper
forms. The survey explores colleagues’ opinions on job satisfaction; culture and
leadership; equality, diversity and inclusion; and line manager performance.

2.2

SNAP software provides Level 3 or AAA compliance with the Web Content
Accessibility Guidelines, including options to provide plain text versions and
other equivalents designed to encourage completion by staff members with
disabilities.

2.3

Engagement with staff to encourage completion was undertaken via email and
intranet messages to staff, cascade via management teams, plasma screens in
relevant buildings and some face-to-face engagement sessions in Joint Service
Centres and depots.

Page 20

Colleague Opinion Survey, Version: 1.2
Author: Gareth Sayers / Sue Barsby, 19/06/19
Page 2 of 5

Nottingham City Council

2.4

Analysis of the results was undertaken using reports from SNAP survey software
by the HR Management Information Team. Basic analysis of the qualitative
comments was undertaken by the Internal Communications and Engagement
Consultant using Interpris software.

3.0

KEY FINDINGS

3.1

Overall, results from those who responded to the 2018 survey have been
positive, with improved scores in many areas, however there has been
deterioration across all ‘manager activity’ scores.

3.2

About your job
The results show consistent or improved scores from 2017, though the lower
response rate suggests that colleagues who complete the survey are fairly
engaged but the challenge is to reach the rest of the workforce.





3.3

67% of respondents are satisfied with their job, a rise of 4% from 2017.
50% are satisfied with their job satisfaction, a rise of 6%
50% are satisfied with their workload, a rise of 6%
61% feel valued at work (a new question in 2018)

About your line manager
Scores have declined across all areas; reasons for this could be the large
number of restructures in the previous year which impacted change
management, as well as giving managers bigger teams and less capacity for the
basics of line management.






3.4

67% agree holds regular team meetings (drop of 4%)
68% agree holds regular supervision (drop of 3%)
63% agree gives me feedback on how I’m doing (down 4%)
53% agree encourages the team to be ambitious (down 4%)
56% agree manages change competently (down 7%)

Leadership and Culture
Results in this area remain consistent with results the same as previous years or
with marginal changes of 1-2%.





38% agree that there is good collaboration between teams in the Council
38% agree that they have confidence in CLT, with a further 38% neutral
about this question.
81% agree that providing good customer service is at the heart of their work
59% feel able to speak up about problems in their service

Page 21

Colleague Opinion Survey, Version: 1.2
Author: Gareth Sayers / Sue Barsby, 19/06/19
Page 3 of 5

Nottingham City Council

3.5

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
One new question was added to this section, around manager behaviour in EDI
issues. On the whole results were consistent or positive from previous years.






3.6

80% agree that NCC values a diverse workforce; however when broken
down by protected characteristics:
o 62% BME colleagues agree
o 69% LGBT colleagues agree
o 78% disabled colleagues agree*
70% agree that their manager actively demonstrates a commitment to a
diverse workforce1
78% agree that they are treated fairly regardless of my individual
circumstances
81% agree that they are able to access the support they require for their
individual circumstances

Keeping Citizens at the Heart
This question asked for suggestions of changes to the way services currently
work that may help the Council improve services to citizens. The responses were
themed using Interpris software.



3.7

The most popular comments were to do with managers. Not all comments
were negative. Many concerned overwork and a lack of contact with their
managers, or managers’ capacity.
Other areas for improvement included:
o Communication, including across the organisation, as well as between
teams and within teams
o Collaboration – staff suggested they would like more opportunities to
collaborate and find out more about other areas of the organisation
o A desire to progress and develop in the organisation
o IT – comments expressed concern over the offer from IT services, but
several also wanted to request better technology and equipment to
improve services.

Any other comments
This question was separated from the main survey to ensure anonymity of
responses. The responses were themed using Interpris software.


Many comments were concerned with workload issues, including high
workload rates and low staffing resources. All were concerned with how
workload impacted on service provision.

*Response rates for these characteristics BME is lower proportionally while LGBT and Disability response rates are
proportionally higher. This breakdown does not include people who do not wish to declare or leave the question
blank.

Page 22

Colleague Opinion Survey, Version: 1.2
Author: Gareth Sayers / Sue Barsby, 19/06/19
Page 4 of 5

Nottingham City Council




3.8

Budget issues were also popular for commenters here, including how
decisions were budget driven and less people driven. Again, the impact on
service provision was a key concern.
Many colleagues expressed a desire for a long-term strategy and vision for
the Council, with clear priorities, and a step away from the short-termism of
budget cuts.

Benchmarking response rates
Many councils run an Employee Opinion Survey, receiving similar response rates
to that of Nottingham City Council. The following provides a summary of the
comparisons:
Council

Response rate

Birmingham City Council
Leicestershire County Council
Amber Valley District Council
Charnwood District Council
Cardiff City Council

31%
41%
37%
35%
51%

4.0

NEXT STEPS

4.1

Taking action with the findings
Departmental Leadership Teams (DLTs) spent time analysing and further
interpreting the results of the COS for their departments and put forward their top
three priorities / areas of focus to Corporate Leadership Team (CLT).
CLT reviewed the findings, themes and departmental priorities and agreed to
focus on the following:





Leading the organisation: creating a vision
Leading people: developing our leaders
Employee development and equality, diversity and inclusion
Collaboration and communication

Feedback has been provided to employees with regard to the findings and the
action to be taken, and an ongoing communication and engagement plan has
been formulated to keep employees informed of developments. DLTs continue to
work on their own priorities and are taking further actions with their results.
4.2

Lessons learned
Following a review of the 2018 process and practices, engagement methods,
methodology and timings of the next Colleague Opinion Survey are all being
explored and considered.

Page 23

Colleague Opinion Survey, Version: 1.2
Author: Gareth Sayers / Sue Barsby, 19/06/19
Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
3 JULY 2019
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY STATUTORY GUIDANCE
REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE
1

Purpose

1.1 Councillors are asked to review the Statutory Guidance on Overview and
Scrutiny in Local and Combined Authorities, and note the
recommendations.
2

Action required

2.1 To note the recommendations from Statutory Guidance on Overview and
Scrutiny in Local and Combined Authorities, and make further
recommendations for Scrutiny if appropriate.
3

Background information

3.1 On 7 May 2019, the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local
Government published guidance entitled Statutory Guidance on
Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined Authorities. This guidance
contains recommendations for carrying out effective Scrutiny.
3.2 Zena West, Senior Governance Officer, will brief the Committee on the
recommendations for effective scrutiny, and how these can be
implemented in Nottingham.
4

List of attached information

4.1 None.
5

Background papers, other than published works or those
disclosing exempt or confidential information

5.1 None.
6

Published documents referred to in compiling this report

6.1 Statutory Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined
Authorities:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/upl
oads/attachment_data/file/800048/Statutory_Guidance_on_Overview_an
d_Scrutiny_in_Local_and_Combined_Authorities.pdf
7

Wards affected

7.1 None.

Page 25

8

Contact information

8.1 Zena West, Senior Governance Officer
Zena.west@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
0115 876 4305

Page 26

Agenda Item 7

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
3 JULY 2019
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20
REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE
1

Purpose

1.1 To consider items for future scrutiny for 2019/20.
2

Action required

2.1 To note the work that is currently planned for the 2019/20 municipal year,
and make amendments to the programme as appropriate.
3

Background information

3.1 The Committee is responsible for setting and managing its own work
programme.
3.2 In setting a programme for scrutiny activity, the Committee should aim
for an outcome-focused work programme that has clear priorities and a
clear link to its roles and responsibilities. The work programme needs to
be flexible so that issues which arise as the year progresses can be
considered appropriately.
3.3 Where there are a number of potential items that could be scrutinised in
a given year, consideration of what represents the highest priority or area
of risk will assist with work programme planning. Changes and/or
additions to the work programme will need to take account of the
resources available to the Committee.
4

List of attached information

4.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting 2019/20 Work Programme.
5

5.1
6

Background papers, other than published works or those
disclosing exempt or confidential information
None.
Published documents referred to in compiling this report

6.1 None.

Page 27

7

Wards affected

7.1 All.
8

Contact information

8.1 Zena West, Senior Governance Officer
Zena.West@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
0115 876 4305

Page 28

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 2019/20 Work Programme

DATE

ITEMS
Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Deaths
Housing Aid
Selective Licensing
Update from the Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Heritage
Universal Credit
Update from the Portfolio Holder for Portfolio Holder for Communities
Written update from Nottingham Credit Union

CONTACT
NCC (TBC)
NCC (TBC)
NCC (TBC)
Councillor Linda Woodings
NCC (TBC)
Councillor Rebecca Langton
Nottingham Credit Union

Update on the Workplace Parking Levy

NCC (TBC)

Update from the Portfolio Holder for Finance, Growth and the City Centre

Councillor Sam Webster

8 January 2020

Update from the Portfolio Holder for Early Years, Education and Employment (issues within the
employment remit)

Councillor Neghat Khan

5 February
2020

Update from the Portfolio Holder for Leisure, Culture and IT

Councillor Dave Trimble

4 March 2020

Update from the Portfolio Holder for Adult Care and Local Transport (issues within the local
transport remit)

Councillor Adele Williams

ITEMS
Economy Building
Flooding

CONTACT
TBC
TBC

4 September
2019

9 October 2019
6 November
2019
4 December
2019

Page 29

8 April 2020
DATE
Unscheduled
Unscheduled
Unscheduled
Unscheduled
Unscheduled
Unscheduled
Unscheduled
Unscheduled
Unscheduled

This page is intentionally left blank

